



LOUISIANA COMMUNITY & TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM

Changing Lives,
Creating Futures

Monty Sullivan
System President

Officers:
Stephen Toups
Chair

Paul Price, Jr.
First Vice Chair

Willie L. Mount
Second Vice Chair

Members:

- Tari T. Bradford
Helen Bridges Carter
Timothy W. Hardy
Alterman L. "Chip" Jackson
Erika McConduit
Michael J. Murphy
Joe Potts
Stanton W. Salathe
Stephen C. Smith
Mark D. Spears, Jr.
Craig Spohn
Vincent St. Blanc, III

Student Members:

- Jeremy Gray
Raissa Oliveira Yantis

Louisiana
Community
& Technical
College System

265 South Foster Drive
Baton Rouge, LA 70806

Phone: 225-922-2800
Fax: 225-922-1185

www.lctcs.edu

TO: Dr. Monty Sullivan
LCTCS President
THROUGH: Joseph F. Marin
Chief Operations Officer
FROM: Gena Doucet
Chief Human Resources and Development Officer
SUBJECT: Revised Leave Policy for Unclassified, Non-Civil Service Employees
DATE: May 17, 2019

Received
APPROVED
slk 6/12/19
LCTCS BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

FOR REVIEW AND ADVISEMENT

Recommendation: Staff recommends that the Board accept for review and advisement the attached revised Leave Policy for Unclassified, Non-Civil Service Employees (#6.003).

Background: When this policy was previously reviewed for the compensatory leave section many questions arose regarding the other types of leave unclassified employees are allowed. In the effort to clear up some misunderstandings the policy was reviewed and then later revised.

This policy has been revised to reduce redundancy and clarify different types of leave for unclassified employees. The specific changes include: (1) revised definitions section; (2) combined annual and sick leave sections; (3) combined civil, emergency, and other leave sections; and (4) removal of the section on Family Medical Leave due to a separate policy created April 2016.

History of Prior Actions: This policy was last revised in January 2019.

Benefits to System: The proposed changes will allow an over-arching policy that is clear and concise for the System Office and the Colleges to use.

Monty Sullivan
Approved for Distribution to the Board
Dr. Monty Sullivan, President

6-12-19
Date

LOUISIANA COMMUNITY & TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM
Policy # 6.003

**Title: LEAVE POLICY RECORD ESTABLISHMENT AND REGULATIONS FOR
ALL UNCLASSIFIED, NON-CIVIL SERVICE EMPLOYEES**

Authority: Board Action	Original Adoption:	<u>05/10/2000</u>
	Effective Date of Current Policy:	01/01/2019
	Last Revision Approved:	01/01/2019

A. ~~Introduction~~INTRODUCTION

The rules and policies set forth below shall be applicable to all unclassified, non-civil service —employees under the jurisdiction of the Louisiana Community and Technical College (LCTCS) Board of Supervisors. ~~It is the policy of the Board of ——— Supervisors that unclassified employees shall enjoy benefits comparable to other classes of state ——— employees, and these rules and policies are promulgated under that concept.~~ Classified employees — are covered by Civil Service rules and regulations for the State of Louisiana. This policy is intended to define and incorporate in one policy the various types of leaves of absences in order to develop procedures and maintenance of records in accordance with System, State and Federal regulations.

B. POLICY

Employees shall not absent themselves from their duties without proper authorization.

It is the responsibility of the ~~supervisor department head or his/her~~ designee to receive and review requests for all leave and approve or ~~deny is approve~~ such requests in accordance with LCTCS policy, and to ascertain that ~~the department staff keeps~~ accurate leave records ~~on-for~~ all departmental employees and reports information on leave accrued, leave taken and leave denied. Attendance and leave records shall be maintained for all unclassified employees. —These records shall be signed by the employee and the supervisor and reported to the appropriate office at the end of the regular pay period. No employee shall approve or maintain records for ~~their his/her~~ own leave.

A. ~~Definition~~DEFINITIONSs:

C:

~~+~~ Administrative Leave: ~~is p~~Paid or unpaid leave enforced upon an employee for a specific or indefinite period of time when such action would be in the best interest of ~~the system.~~LCTCS.

Advanced Degree Leave: Partial paid or unpaid leave with either no pay or partial pay granted to full-time non-faculty employees for education study which will culminate in the receipt of an advanced degree which will, the object of which is to enable the employee to increase their professional efficiency and usefulness to the LCTCS.

2.

Annual Leave: Paid leave with pay granted to for regular unclassified 12-month employees on a regular tour of duty for the purpose of rehabilitation, restoration, maintenance of work efficiency, Family and Medical Leave (FMLA) or attention to other personal concerns affairs.

3.

4. Appointing Authority: means The LCTC System President, the Chancellor or equivalent of each LCTCS community college, technical community college and the Senior Vice President of Career and Technical Education for the Louisiana Technical College, or their designee. as delegated by the System President, and as authorized by statute or lawfully delegated authority to make appointments to positions in the Louisiana Community & Technical College System. Note: In any instance where the term Appointing Authority is used, this will also mean the appointing authority's designee.

Civil Leave: Paid leave without loss of annual or sick leave granted to an employee to perform jury duty; to appear as subpoenaed before a court, public body, or commission, to perform civil duties in connection with national defense or other civil emergencies; to vote.

Classified Employee — all employees in positions covered by the provisions of the Civil Service System of the State of Louisiana.

5. Compensatory Leave: is Leave earned and granted in lieu of paying an eligible unclassified employees non-faculty for overtime hours worked. employee for hours worked over the 40-hour workweek/80-hour pay periods with pPrior written approval by the Appointing Authority is required.

6. Educational Leave: is Paid leave that may be granted to and used by eligible unclassified non-civil service employees for the purpose of attending an approved job-related course of study.

Emergency Leave: Paid leave without loss of annual or sick leave due to emergency conditions as determined by the Appointing Authority or designee.

Faculty Leave: is Leave granted as specified by the official college calendar only to eligible (full-time) 9 and 10 month faculty members employed for a regular on the 9-month and 10-month (academic year) basis in lieu of annual leave and is comprised of the days between terms. The intent is to ensure faculty continue to receive regular earnings between terms. and at holiday periods when students are not in classes. This special form of leave is not an accrued leave.

7. — It is granted as appropriate and shall be taken as it is granted. Faculty leave ensures that the regular earnings of eligible faculty members are not reduced during the prescribed periods, i.e. they do not lose pay because classes are not in session.

8. Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA — the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 as amended): Please refer to LCTCS Policy #6.041 Family and Medical Leave for All Employees. is unpaid leave granted to eligible employees that enables them to take up to a maximum of twelve work weeks for qualifying events, or up to 26 weeks in a single 12-month period for military caregiver purposes. It provides for continuation of health care premiums when the employee has and wishes to continue health care coverage during the period of approved family and medical leave. LCTCS policy requires concurrent use of paid leave as appropriate, based on the eligibility for use of such leave.

FLSA — Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA): is a federal labor law of general and nationwide application, including Overtime, Mminimum Wwages, Cchild Llabor Pprotections and the Eequal Ppay Aact.

9. Immediate Family Member (Funeral Leave): Paid leave of up to two (2) days for immediate family members (i.e. parent, step-parent, child, step-child, brother, step-brother, sister, step-sister, spouse, mother-in-law, father-in-law, grandchild or grandparent is an employee's spouse, child, step-child, sister, step-sister, brother, step-brother, parent, step-parent, mother-in-law, father-in-law, grandparent, or grandchild.).

10. Job related course of study is a course in which the course content is of direct and significant assistance to the employee in carrying out present duties and responsibilities or contributing to his or her professional development, as approved by the supervisor. This also includes courses that are part of a job-related degree/certificate program.

11. Leave without pay is leave, for which the employee receives no pay that is granted and taken as it is granted.

12. Leave of absence: without pay is a period of leave or time off from work granted by the Appointing Authority or designee, under stipulated conditions, for which the employee receives no pay.

13. LCTCS The system office and colleges that make up the Louisiana Community and Technical College System.

14. Military Leave: means Leave granted to an employee who is ordered to duty with troops or at field exercises or for instruction with any branch of the Armed Forces, including for continuous and uninterrupted military duty on a voluntary or involuntary basis to include active duty, active duty for training, full-time the National Guard duty, annual training, and inactive duty for training (weekend drills).

Other Leave: Paid leave without loss of annual or sick leave granted by the Appointing Authority or designee under stipulated conditions. Regular Tour of Duty is an established schedule of work hours and days recurring regularly on a weekly, bi-weekly, or monthly basis for full-time or part-time unclassified employees.

Personal Leave: Leave of up to two (2) days per academic year granted to unclassified employees who do not receive annual leave. It is granted for the personal purposes of the employee. Personal leave is charged to and deducted from the employee's sick leave for the current year or sick leave accumulated as provided by Louisiana R.S. 17:3311.

15. Sabbatical Leave: is Leave granted to eligible full-time faculty for the purpose of professional or cultural improvement, study, and research, the object of which is to enable the faculty to increase their professional efficiency and usefulness to the LCTCS.

16. Sick Leave: is Paid leave with pay granted to an unclassified employee who is suffering from a disability which prevents with an illness or injury which prevents said employee from performing their usual and essential work duties and responsibilities and who requires that is for medical, dental, or optical consultation or treatment including for Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) purposes. Louisiana R.S. 17:3311

17. Special, Civil, Emergency, and Other Leave: Paid leave granted is leave with pay, without loss of annual leave or sick leave, granted by the Appointing Authority or designee under stipulated conditions.

18. State Service, for purposes of all employees of the LCTCS on July 1, 1999 and thereafter, is employment in the executive branch of state government, including state supported schools, agencies

and universities; public parish school systems; public student employment; and membership on a public board or commission; and employment in the legislative and judicial branches. To constitute state service, the service or employment shall have been performed for a Louisiana public entity. Contract service does not constitute state service.

19. Unauthorized Leave without Pay is when an employee is administratively placed on leave without pay as a result of the employee failing or refusing to request leave and leave without pay status is determined to be necessary.

20. Unclassified Employees: Positions service means those positions of specifically exempt from the classified service state service as defined in Article X of the Louisiana Constitution, Section 2 and 42 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974, which are not positions in the classified service. The term "unclassified employee" in this policy includes both faculty and staff non-faculty employees not covered by civil service, unless otherwise indicated.

Work Week (Full Time): For the purpose of accruing and taking leave, the Appointing Authority or designee shall establish work weeks of not less than forty (40) hours per week or pay periods of not less than eighty (80) hours per pay period.

Work Week (Part Time): For the purpose of accruing and taking leave, the Appointing Authority or designee shall establish work weeks or pay periods proportionate to their part time appointment.

ANNUAL AND SICK LEAVE

A. Annual and Sick Leave Eligibility

1. Unclassified 12 month employees shall earn annual leave. Faculty appointed for 9 or 10 months do not earn annual leave.
2. Unclassified employees, including 9 and 10 month faculty shall earn sick leave. Instructional employees with full time contracts for the fall and spring semesters, who elect to accept adjunct contracts for summer employment, shall be eligible to earn sick leave during their summer employment.
3. Adjunct (temporary) faculty, student workers, per diem, intermittent, seasonal or temporary employees who do not have a regular appointment are not eligible to earn leave.

B. Annual and Sick Leave Accruals

1. Annual and sick leave shall be accrued by each eligible unclassified employee. See eligibility section for details.
2. Unused annual and sick leave accrued by an employee shall be carried forward to the succeeding years without limitation.
3. LCTCS Chancellors and equivalent, regardless of years of state service, shall accrue annual and sick leave at the following rate:

<u>Days Per Month</u>	<u>Hours Per Month</u>	<u>Hours Biweekly / 80-hour Pay Period</u>	<u>Hourly Rate Per Hour</u>
2	16	7.39	.0923

4. Annual and sick leave accrued shall be based on the equivalent of years of full-time state service or part-time service on a pro-rated to full-time equivalency basis and shall be credited at the end to each pay period or calendar month in accordance with the following general schedule:

<u>Years of Service</u>	<u>Days Per Month</u>	<u>Hours Per Month</u>	<u>Hours Bi-Weekly / 80-hour Pay Period</u>	<u>Hours Per Week</u>
<u>Less than 3 years</u>	1.00	8.0	3.69	1.85
<u>3 years but less than 5 years</u>	1.25	10.0	4.61	2.31

<u>5 years but less than 10 years</u>	<u>1.50</u>	<u>12.0</u>	<u>5.54</u>	<u>2.77</u>
<u>10 years but less than 15 years</u>	<u>1.75</u>	<u>14.0</u>	<u>6.46</u>	<u>3.23</u>
<u>15 years and over</u>	<u>2.00</u>	<u>16.0</u>	<u>7.38</u>	<u>3.70</u>

Public parish school system employment is accepted under this policy as “state service” for determination of years of service in calculation of accrual rate for the earning of leave. Such public parish school system employment does not, however, provide eligibility for transfer of leave balance from the public parish school system to the LCTCS.

5. No annual or sick leave shall be credited until the employee has completed the pay period in which they are employed.
6. No annual or sick leave is accrued for any
 - a. Overtime hour(s),
 - b. Hour(s) of leave without pay,
 - c. Hour(s) of on-call status outside regular duty hours,
 - d. Hour(s) of travel or other activity outside the employee’s regular duty hours,
 - e. Hour(s) of a holiday or other non-work day which occurs while on leave without pay,
 - f. Hour(s) while an employee is on sabbatical leave,
 - g. Hour(s) while an employee is on advanced degree leave, or
 - h. Hour(s) of leave of absence without pay.

However, time spent on sabbatical leave and advanced degree leave does count as service toward leave accrual rate change.
7. Full time faculty with an annual contract of less than 12-month duration, who are employed as adjunct faculty during the summer immediately following the end of their contract, may accrue sick leave prorated, as necessary, during the actual weeks of employment should their respective college choose to adopt such practice. Such faculty shall earn sick leave according to the rates shown above.

C. Use of Annual Leave

1. Written application should be made at least one week in advance for periods of one week or more, except when medical necessity makes it impractical to make the request in advance;
 1. Granting of annual is not automatic and may be denied or restricted based on business necessity; Work Weeks, Attendance and Leave Records for Unclassified Employees:
 - 2.
 3. Any employee not reporting to work when a request for annual leave has been denied will be considered on unauthorized leave without pay and will be subject to disciplinary action;
 4. Annual leave may be used for voluntary or involuntary conditions for personal time off, including when performing for compensation non-appointment related activities or work during regular work week;
 5. All employees are expected to notify their supervisor when absent. Failure to do so may result in disciplinary action, including termination;
-
21. For each full-time unclassified employee, each appointing authority shall establish administrative work weeks of not less than forty (40) hours per week or pay periods of not less than eighty (80) hours per pay period. The purpose of establishing the 40-hour week/80-hour pay period is to provide appointing authorities a system of accounting for and the taking of leave. A work station normally will be one’s office or elsewhere on the employer’s premises, or at other locations as approved by the appointing authority while representing the employer. For example, it is understood that some faculty work may be done outside the office in places such as the library, in laboratories or in off-campus sites.
 22. For purposes of leave, appointing authorities shall establish work weeks / pay periods proportionate to the provisions of the previous paragraph for part-time employees. Part-time

~~unclassified employees with a regular tour of duty shall earn leave on a pro-rata basis in accordance with the accrual procedures as defined for the types of leave as defined in this policy.~~

~~23. Attendance and leave records shall be maintained for all unclassified employees. These records shall be signed by the employee and the supervisor and reported to the appropriate office at the end of the regular pay period.~~

~~24. Adjunct (temporary) faculty, student workers, per diem, intermittent, seasonal or temporary employees who do not have a regular tour of duty are not eligible to earn leave provided that instructional employees with full time contracts for the fall and spring semesters, who elect to accept adjunct contracts for summer employment, shall be eligible to earn sick leave during their summer employment.~~

~~D. Faculty Leave for Faculty on Nine (9) Month and Ten (10) Month (Academic Year) Basis Only:~~

~~1. Faculty Leave is leave granted to eligible (full-time) faculty members employed for the academic year and who have a regular tour of duty.~~

~~2. Faculty Leave is leave granted in lieu of annual leave and is comprised of the days between terms and at holiday periods when students are not in classes to ensure that the regular earnings of eligible faculty members are not reduced during the prescribed periods, i.e. they do not lose pay because classes are not in session. NOTE: Such faculty are eligible for holiday pay; but if the faculty member is on unpaid leave before or after the holiday, his or her pay may be reduced.~~

~~E. Faculty Leave shall be granted as specified by the official calendar of the institution served, and shall be taken as it is granted. Annual Leave for Unclassified Employees on the 12 Month Basis:~~

~~1. Accrual of Annual Leave~~

~~a. Annual leave shall be accrued by each eligible employee on a twelve-month basis who has a regular tour of duty.~~

~~b. LCTCS Chancellors, regardless of years of state service, shall accrue annual leave at the following rate:~~

Days of Leave Per Month	Hours of Leave Per Month	Hour of Leave Bi-weekly /80-hour Pay Period	Hourly Rate Per Hour
2	16	7.39	.0923

~~e. Annual leave accrued shall be based on the equivalent of years of full-time state service or part-time service on a prorated to full-time equivalency basis and shall be credited at the end to each pay period or calendar month in accordance with the following general schedule:~~

~~ACCUAL RATES OF ANNUAL LEAVE~~

~~UNCLASSIFIED FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES ON 12-MONTH BASIS~~

Months of	Hours Earned Based Upon Eligible Service

Leave Eligible Service	as Calculated in the Banner System				
	Months of Service	35 or less	36-59	60-119	120-179
Hours of Leave Earned Per Week	1.85 hours	2.31 hours	2.77 hours	3.23 hours	3.7 hours
Hours of Leave Per (80-hour) Pay Period	3.69 hours	4.61 hours	5.54 hours	6.46 hours	7.39 hours

d. No annual leave shall be credited until the employee has completed the pay period in which s/he is employed. No annual leave is accrued for any overtime hour(s), for any hour(s) of leave without pay, for any hour(s) of on-call status outside regular duty hours, for any hour(s) of travel or other activity outside the employee's regular duty hours, for any hour of a holiday or other non-work day which occurs while on leave without pay, for any hour while an employee is on sabbatical leave, for any hour while an employee is on advanced degree leave, or leave of absence without pay. However, time spent on sabbatical leave and advanced degree leave does count as service toward leave accrual rate change.

e. Public parish school system employment is accepted under this policy as "state service" for determination of years of service in calculation of accrual rate for the earning of leave. Such public parish school system employment does not, however, provide eligibility for transfer of leave balance from the public parish school system to the LCTCS.

2. Use of Annual Leave

Annual leave for:

- voluntary or involuntary conditions such as personal vacations or trips unrelated to the employee's duties, or
- performing for compensation non-appointment related activities, duties or work during regular tour of duty hours, shall be applied for in advance by the employee and may be taken only when approved by the supervisor.

~~—The granting of annual leave is not automatic and may be denied or restricted based on business necessity. All employees are expected to notify their supervisor when absent. Failure to do so may result in disciplinary action, including termination.~~

~~2. Requirements concerning the use of annual leave include the following:~~

~~6. An appointing authority may require an employee who has sufficient annual leave to their/his/her credit to take annual leave whenever the authority feels that it is best for the employee or the LCTCS;~~

~~7. Annual leave is to be taken in minimum increments of one-half hour;~~

~~8. No employee shall be charged annual leave until available compensatory leave balance has first been utilized;~~

~~e. The use of accrued, unused annual leave immediately preceding resignation, termination or retirement of unclassified personnel will be limited to a maximum equivalent to the amount of annual leave the employee would accrued in a 24-month period for said employee. Exceptions require recommendation of the Appointing Authority and approval by the Board of Supervisors.~~

~~—Except when given special advance approval for absence from duty, an employee shall be at his work station for the day in order to be classified as on duty. A work station normally will be one's office or elsewhere on the employer's premise, or at other locations as approved by the appointing authority while representing the employer.~~

~~9.~~

D. Use of Sick Leave

~~1. An unclassified employee shall apply for use of sick leave when:~~

~~a. Illness or injury which prevents them from performing their work duties; or~~

~~b. They have medical, dental or optical consultation or treatment.~~

~~*When practical, such application shall be made in advance.*~~

~~2. Sick leave may not be used to care for a child or family member.~~

~~3. All employees are expected to notify their supervisor in all instances of absence. Failure to do so may result in leave without pay and/or disciplinary action, including termination.~~

~~4. Employees may be required to provide a physician's excuse. The need for written proof of short-term illness shall be determined by the supervisor.~~

~~5. Employees absent for more than five (5) consecutive work days will be required to submit a release to return to work from a licensed physician or practitioner.~~

~~6. Employees may choose to use compensatory leave in place of sick leave.~~

~~7. Sick leave is to be taken in minimum increments of one-half hours.~~

~~d. Abuse of sick leave may result in disciplinary action, including termination. Annual leave is to be taken in minimum increments of one-half hour. For purposes of leave approved as Family and Medical Leave, the leave to be taken shall be identified as Family and Medical Leave on all leave slips/time sheets.~~

~~e. No employee shall be charged annual leave until available compensatory leave balance has first been utilized.~~

E. Workers' Compensation and Leave Use

~~When an unclassified employee is absent from work due to disabilities for which they are entitled to Worker's Compensation, they may choose to use sick and/or annual leave combined with workers' compensation payments equal to, but not to exceed, the employee's regular salary.~~

F. Payment of Leave Accruals

~~1. Terminal payment of annual leave for an unclassified employee may not exceed 300 hours of unused annual leave at the time of retirement or termination of state service.~~

2. Terminal payment of sick leave for an unclassified employee may not exceed 200 hours of unused sick leave upon retirement or death prior to retirement. Louisiana R.S. 17:425.
 - a. TRSL and LSERS members entering DROP may elect to receive 200 hours of unused sick leave upon entrance into DROP or at retirement. Louisiana R.S. 17:425.1
 - b. LASERS members may elect to receive 200 hours of unused sick leave upon eligibility for retirement, entrance into DROP, or at retirement. Louisiana R.S. 17:425.2
3. An unclassified employee shall not receive payment, directly or in kind, for any accrued sick leave remaining at the time of their non-retirement separation from state service.

An unclassified employee shall not receive payment, directly or in kind, for any accrued sick leave remaining at the time of their non-retirement separation from state service.

4. Payment is based on the employee's annual base rate of pay at the time of separation of state service. —Payment is made provided that
5. Upon death, removal, or other voluntary or involuntary separation of employment of an unclassified employee from state service, annual leave up to a maximum of 300 hours and accrued to his credit shall be computed and paid to the employee or his heirs, provided leave regulations and attendance records have been maintained for the employee by his/her supervisor.
- f. Such pay shall be computed at the employee's base rate of pay at the time of separation of employment from state service.
 - 1) When the employee is paid on an hourly basis, the regular hourly rate that the employee received at the time of separation from state service shall be multiplied by the number of hours of earned unused annual leave, which number is not to exceed three hundred (300) hours; or
 - 2) When the employee is paid on other than an hourly basis, the employee's hourly rate shall be determined by converting the salary the employee received at the time of separation of state service into a working hourly rate. The converted hourly rate shall be multiplied by the number of hours of earned unused annual leave, which number is not to exceed three hundred (300) hours. The converted working hourly rate for leave payments shall be calculated as follows:

<u>Base Year</u>	<u>Formula</u>	<u>Total Hours in a Year</u>	<u>Total Days in a Year</u>
<u>12 Months</u>	<u>52 weeks x 40 hours</u>	<u>2080</u>	<u>260</u>
<u>10 Months</u>	<u>10 months x 4 weeks x 40 hours</u>	<u>1600</u>	<u>200</u>
<u>9 Months</u>	<u>9 months x 4 weeks x 40 hours</u>	<u>1440</u>	<u>180</u>

7. An employee transferring from an LCTCS entity into a non-benefits eligible position at another LCTCS entity or state agency, will receive annual leave payment for unused annual leave not exceed 300 hours.
 - a. Payment will not be made until the gaining agency provides Human Resources with confirmation that the position into which the employee is transferring/being hired is a non-benefits eligible position.

NOTE: Civil Service General Circular 001155 dated June 16, 1994 states that classified employees are not eligible for payment of unused sick leave

- Base fiscal year (12 month) annual salary divided by 2080 (52 weeks x 40 hours);
- Base academic year (10 month) annual salary divided by 1600 (10 months x 4 weeks x 40 hours);
- Base academic year (9 month) annual salary divided by 1440 (9 months x 4 weeks x 40 hours).

—Disbursement of Earned Annual Leave Upon Separation (non-retirement); Repayment under Certain Circumstances

—LASERS for the actuarial value of their unused annual ~~annual and sick~~ leave at retirement, in
—excess of annual ~~and sick~~ leave payout that would otherwise be converted to service credit.

a.

—Employees interested in this option should inform hHuman rResources and LASERS well

b. —in advance of their projected retirement date. *Louisiana R.S. 11:424(L.R.S. 11:424). Please refer LASERS rules regarding conversion of service credit and eligibility.*

—LASERS allows leave in

—excess of the annual leave payout to be converted to service credit — the retirement system, not this policy, regulates the conversion of leave and all questions should be directed to the retirement system. In no case shall annual leave be used to determine

2. —eligibility for retirement. **TRSL and LSERS Members:**

1.

a. Have the option to convert unused annual leave, in excess of annual leave payment to service credit.

Please refer to TRSL and LSERS rules regarding conversion of service credit and eligibility.

—An employee retiring as a member of Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana (TRSL) is entitled to receive payment for annual leave credits not to exceed 300 hours. TRSL members who enter the Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) may elect to be paid annual leave upon entering DROP or at separation from state service (L.R.S. 17:425.1) TRSL allows leave in excess of the annual leave payout to be converted to service credit — the retirement system regulates the conversion of leave and all questions should be directed to the retirement system. In no case shall annual leave be used to determine eligibility for retirement.

—An employee who is retiring from employment as a member of an Optional Retirement Plan (ORP) will receive payment for all annual leave credits to which he/she is entitled (not to exceed three hundred (300) hours). ORP members, as regulated by the retirement system, will not receive credit for unused, unpaid annual leave in excess of the annual leave payout upon separation or retirement. The hourly rate for leave payments shall be calculated as follows:

—Base fiscal year (12 month) annual salary divided by 2080 (52 weeks x 40 hours);

—Base academic year (10 month) annual salary divided by 1600 (10 months x 4 weeks x 40 hours);

—Base academic year (9 month) annual salary divided by 1440 (9 months x 4 weeks x 40 hours);

—An employee who is retiring from employment as a member of Louisiana School Employees Retirement System (LSERS) is entitled to receive payment for annual leave credits not to exceed three hundred (300) hours. The hourly rate for leave payments shall be calculated as follows:

—Base fiscal year (12 month) annual salary divided by 2080 (52 weeks x 40 hours);

—Base academic year (10 month) annual salary divided by 1600 (10 months x 4 weeks x 40 hours);

—Base academic year (9 month) annual salary divided by 1440 (9 months x 4 weeks x 40 hours);

—LSERS members who enter Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP) may elect to be paid annual leave payout, not to exceed three hundred (300) hours, either upon entering DROP or at final separation from state service (LRS 17:425.1). LSERS allows leave in excess of the annual leave payout to be converted to service credit — the retirement system regulates the conversion of leave and all questions should be directed to the retirement system. In no case shall annual leave be used to determine eligibility for retirement. The hourly rate for leave payments shall be calculated as follows:

—Base fiscal year (12 month) annual salary divided by 2080 (52 weeks x 40 hours);

—Base academic year (10 month) annual salary divided by 1600 (10 months x 4 weeks x 40 hours);

—Base academic year (9 month) annual salary divided by 1440 (9 months x 4 weeks x 40 hours);

—**Application Required When Using Annual Leave**

10. Payment of Sick Leave Upon Retirement from Active Duty, Entry into Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP) or Death

Upon death or retirement of an unclassified employee, sick leave accrued to his credit shall be computed and the value thereof shall be paid to the employee or his heirs, provided that the sick leave has been accrued under established leave regulations and a daily attendance record has been maintained for the employee, except that such payment shall not exceed the value of 25 working days computed on the basis of a five day, 40-hour week (200 hours). Unclassified employees who are members of LASERS, LSERS, TRSL or ORP will receive payment for sick leave credits to which they are entitled (not to exceed 200 hours or 25 days), (L.R.S. 17:425.) TRSL members who enter DROP may elect to be paid either upon entering DROP or at retirement from state service (L.R.S. 17:425.1) Unclassified employees who are members of LASERS may elect to be paid either upon eligibility for retirement, participation in DROP or at retirement from state service (L.R.S. 17:425.2). The payment shall be computed as follows:

When the employee is paid on an hourly basis, the regular hourly rate that the employee received at the time of termination from state service shall be multiplied by the number of hours of their accrued sick leave, which number is not to exceed two hundred (200) hours; or

When the employee is paid on other than an hourly basis, the employee's hourly rate shall be determined by converting the salary the employee received at the time of termination from service into a working hourly rate. The converted hourly rate shall be multiplied by the number of hours of their accrued sick leave, which number is not to exceed two hundred (200) hours. The hourly rate for leave payments shall be calculated as follows:

Base fiscal year (12 month) annual salary divided by 2080 (52 weeks x 40 hours);

Base academic year (10 month) annual salary divided by 1600 (10 months x 4 weeks x 40 hours);

Base academic year (9 month) annual salary divided by 1440 (9 months x 4 weeks x 40 hours);

Note: Civil Service General Circular 001155 dated June 16, 1994 states that classified employees are not eligible for payment of unused sick leave.

Employees who are members of LASERS also have the option to receive a lump sum payment from LASERS for the actuarial value of their unused, unpaid sick leave that would otherwise be converted to service credit. Employees interested in this option should inform human resources well in advance of their projected retirement date. (L.R.S. 11:424). Payment for unused sick leave in excess of sick leave payout or conversion to service credit is made and regulated by the retirement system. All questions should be directed to the retirement system and in no case shall sick leave be used to determine eligibility for retirement.

- d. Granting of annual leave by the supervisor will be based upon the department's work load, scheduled annual leave of other employees, attendance record, etc. Written application should be made at least one week in advance for periods of one week or more, except in the case of FMLA when medical necessity makes it impractical to make the request in advance.**
- e. Any employee not reporting to work when a request for annual leave has been denied will be considered on unauthorized leave without pay and will be subject to disciplinary action.**

AA Advancement of Leave

4.H.

1. No advancement of annual or sick leave will be granted.
2. Employees who have exhausted their annual leave may request, in writing, that they be placed on leave without pay.

3. ~~Employees who have exhausted sick leave but who have annual and/or compensatory leave will be required to make use of their annual and/or compensatory leave to continue their leave status or they may request leave without pay upon exhaustion of other paid leave balances.~~
4. The granting of leave without pay is not automatic. ~~It, and~~ is at the discretion of the employer.
3. Employees who have exhausted their annual leave and who fail or refuse to request leave without pay shall administratively be placed on unauthorized leave without pay and may be subject to disciplinary action, including termination.

5.

- a. Annual ~~and sick~~ leave cannot be shared or borrowed from the leave balances of other employees. ~~No advance of sick leave will be granted. Employees who have exhausted sick leave but who earn and have annual and/or compensatory leave will be required to make use of their annual and/or compensatory leave to continue their leave status or they may request leave without pay upon exhaustion of other paid leave balances. The granting of leave without pay is not automatic, and is at the discretion of the employer. Employees who fail or refuse to request leave without pay shall administratively be placed on unauthorized leave without pay and may be subject to disciplinary action, including termination.~~

~~Sick leave cannot be shared or borrowed from the leave balances of other employees.~~

4.6.

5.1. Transfer and Continuance of ~~Annual~~ Leave Balances

~~Accrued and unused annual and sick leave credits of an employee will be certified and credited to the leave record w~~

1. ~~When an employee changes employment status such as:~~

- a. ~~s within the LCTCS, i.e. changes from faculty to non-faculty~~ Employee type status ~~change within LCTCS;~~
- b. ~~is re~~Re-employed by the LCTCS; ~~or~~
- c. ~~is hired~~Hired from another State Agency to the LCTCS without a break in service of one or more working days;

a. ~~It should be noted that: s, accrued and unused annual leave credits of the employee will be certified and credited to the leave record; provided that~~

d.

i. ~~a~~An employee cannot be given more leave credit than ~~they~~he/she could have accrued had ~~they~~he/she performed all of the service under the leave regulations of the LCTCS.

i.

~~†~~The employee is eligible to accrue unearned leave and termination was not made for cause (disciplinary action).

ii.

iii. The employee must be re-employed in a benefits eligible position as a condition for using credited annual ~~and sick~~ leave, otherwise such leave will be held in abeyance until such time as this policy stipulates the credited leave may be used.

2. ~~When an employee changes their position from one state agency to another, without a break in service of one or more working days, the unused annual and sick leave shall be forwarded to the gaining agency, upon request by the gaining agency, for credit to the employee by that agency according to that agency's leave policies~~

2.

a. ~~When an employee changes their position from one state agency to another, without a break in service of one or more working days, the unused annual leave shall be forwarded to the gaining agency, upon request by the gaining agency, for credit to the employee by that agency according to that agency's leave policies.~~

5. ~~When a former LCTCS employee is rehired into state service following a break of one or more working days, accrued, unused annual and sick leave balances remaining in LCTCS records~~

will be transferred to the hiring agency upon request, provided the duration of the break in state service does not exceed 5 years.

3.

b.4. Public parish school system employment is accepted under this policy as “state service” for determination of years of service in calculation of accrual rate for the earning of leave. Such public parish school system employment does not, however, provide eligibility for transfer of leave balance from the public parish school system to the LCTCS.

J. Re-Employment and Reimbursement

~~6.1. Disbursement of Earned Annual Leave Upon Separation (non-retirement): Repayment under Certain Circumstances~~

~~1.~~

~~a.1. An employee upon non-retirement separation from state services will receive a payment for all unused annual leave credits to which he/she is entitled, up to a maximum of three hundred (300) hours.~~

~~b.1. An employee, upon transferring from an LCTCS entity into a non-benefits eligible position at another LCTCS entity or state agency, will receive payment for all annual leave credits to which he/she is entitled (subject to the 300-hour maximum). Payment will not be made until the gaining agency provides human resources with confirmation that the position into which the employee is transferring/being hired is a non-benefits eligible position. E.g. full-time 12-month faculty member at one college transfers from an annual leave accruing position to a 9-month position at a different college, in which no annual leave is accrued. Payment for the leave will be made at the hourly rate of the last annual leave earning position held prior to the transfer.~~

1. An unclassified employee who is paid for accrued annual leave upon termination from state service and who is subsequently re-employed in a leave earning position shall reimburse the state service, through the employing agency, for the number of hours they wasere paid which exceeded the number of work hours that transpired during histheir break from state service.

2. Payment shall be made at the same rate which was paid to the employee.

3. In turn, the employee shall receive a credit for the number of hours of annual leave for which he made reimbursement to state service.

e.

~~When an employee changes employment status within the LCTCS (Faculty/Other Academic/Unclassified/Classified), is re-employed by the LCTCS, or is hired from another State Agency to the LCTCS without a break in service of one or more working days, accrued and unused sick leave credits of the employee will be certified and credited to the leave record; provided that~~

~~an employee cannot be given more leave credit than he/she could have earned had he/she performed all of the service under the leave regulations of the LCTCS;~~

~~the employee is eligible to accrue sick leave and termination was not made for cause (disciplinary action).~~

~~The employee must be re-employed in a benefit eligible position as a condition for using credited sick leave.~~

~~When an employee changes their position from one state agency to another, without a break in service of one or more working days, the unused sick leave shall be forwarded to the gaining agency, upon request by the gaining agency, for credit to the employee by that agency according to that agency's leave policies.~~

~~When a former LCTCS employee is rehired into state service following a break of one or more working days, accrued, unused sick leave balances remaining in LCTCS records will be transferred to the hiring agency upon request, provided the duration of the break in state service does not exceed 5 years.~~

~~Public parish school system employment is accepted under this policy as "state service" for determination of years of service in calculation of accrual rate for the earning of leave. Such public parish school system employment does not, however, provide eligibility for transfer of leave balance from the public parish school system to the LCTCS.~~

7.K. Retention Limit for Unused Annual and Sick Annual Leave

- 1.** Any accrued ~~and~~; unused annual ~~and sick~~ leave ~~credits~~ remaining after payment in accordance with this policy, will be maintained in LCTCS records for a period of 5 years from the date of non-retirement separation.
- 2.** These credits will be verified and transferred, upon request, to a new state employer, or re-instated if re-employed with an LCTCS institution, as long as the individual has not been out of state service for more than 5 years.
- 3.** The credits will be cleared from LCTCS records after 5 years from the date of the employee's non-retirement separation from employment.

Retention Limit for Unused Sick Leave

~~Remaining accrued, unused sick leave credits will be maintained in LCTCS records for a period of 5 years from the date of non-retirement separation. These credits will be verified and transferred, upon request, to a new state employer, or re-instated if re-employed with an LCTCS institution, as long as the individual has not been out of state service for more than 5 years. The credits will be cleared from LCTCS records after 5 years from the date of the employee's non-retirement separation from employment.~~

~~8. Payment of Annual Leave Upon Retirement from Active Duty, Entry into Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP) or Death~~

~~a. Employees who are members of Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System (LASERS) who are eligible for retirement or are participating in Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP) are eligible to receive severance pay pursuant to sections A-E of LRS 17:425.2. and are eligible to receive payment for all annual leave credits to which he/she is entitled (not to exceed the maximum of three hundred (300) hours). The hourly rate for leave payments shall be calculated as follows:~~

- ~~• Base fiscal year (12 month) annual salary divided by 2080 (52 weeks x 40 hours);~~
- ~~• Base academic year (10 month) annual salary divided by 1600 (10 months x 4 weeks x 40 hours);~~
- ~~• Base academic year (9 month) annual salary divided by 1440 (9 months x 4 weeks x 40 hours).~~

~~— LASERS members also have the option to receive a lump sum payment from~~

~~— LASERS for the actuarial value of their unused annual leave at retirement, in~~

~~— excess of annual leave payout that would otherwise be converted to service credit.~~

~~— Employees interested in this option should inform human resources and LASERS well~~

~~— in advance of their projected retirement date. (L.R.S. 11:424). LASERS allows leave in~~

~~— excess of the annual leave payout to be converted to service credit — the retirement~~

~~— system, not this policy, regulates the conversion of leave and all questions should be~~

~~— directed to the retirement system. In no case shall annual leave be used to determine~~

~~— eligibility for retirement.~~

~~b. An employee retiring as a member of Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana (TRSL) is entitled to receive payment for annual leave credits not to exceed 300 hours. TRSL members who enter the Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) may elect to be paid annual leave upon entering DROP or at separation from state service (L.R.S. 17:425.1) TRSL allows leave in excess of the annual leave~~

~~payout to be converted to service credit—the retirement system regulates the conversion of leave and all questions should be directed to the retirement system. In no case shall annual leave be used to determine eligibility for retirement.~~

~~1) — An employee who is retiring from employment as a member of an Optional Retirement Plan (ORP) will receive payment for all annual leave credits to which he/she is entitled (not to exceed three hundred (300) hours). ORP members, as regulated by the retirement system, will not receive credit for unused, unpaid annual leave in excess of the annual leave payout upon separation or retirement. The hourly rate for leave payments shall be calculated as follows:~~

- ~~• — Base fiscal year (12 month) annual salary divided by 2080 (52 weeks x 40 hours);~~
- ~~• — Base academic year (10 month) annual salary divided by 1600 (10 months x 4 weeks x 40 hours);~~
- ~~• — Base academic year (9 month) annual salary divided by 1440 (9 months x 4 weeks x 40 hours).~~

~~2) — An employee who is retiring from employment as a member of Louisiana School Employees Retirement System (LSERS) is entitled to receive payment for annual leave credits not to exceed three hundred (300) hours. The hourly rate for leave payments shall be calculated as follows:~~

- ~~• — Base fiscal year (12 month) annual salary divided by 2080 (52 weeks x 40 hours);~~
- ~~• — Base academic year (10 month) annual salary divided by 1600 (10 months x 4 weeks x 40 hours);~~
- ~~• — Base academic year (9 month) annual salary divided by 1440 (9 months x 4 weeks x 40 hours).~~

~~3) — LSERS members who enter Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP) may elect to be paid annual leave payout, not to exceed three hundred (300) hours, either upon entering DROP or at final separation from state service (LRS 17:425.1). LSERS allows leave in excess of the annual leave payout to be converted to service credit—the retirement system regulates the conversion of leave and all questions should be directed to the retirement system. In no case shall annual leave be used to determine eligibility for retirement. The hourly rate for leave payments shall be calculated as follows:~~

- ~~• — Base fiscal year (12 month) annual salary divided by 2080 (52 weeks x 40 hours);~~
- ~~• — Base academic year (10 month) annual salary divided by 1600 (10 months x 4 weeks x 40 hours);~~
- ~~• — Base academic year (9 month) annual salary divided by 1440 (9 months x 4 weeks x 40 hours).~~

L. H. Reemployment After Retirement

Unused, unpaid annual and sick leave is *not* re-credited to individuals reemployed after retirement from state service.

F. Sick Leave for All Unclassified Employees:

1. — Accrual of Sick Leave

- a. Sick Leave for unclassified employees shall be accrued by each employee who has a regular tour of duty.**
- b. LCTCS Chancellors, regardless of years of state service, shall accrue sick leave at the following rate:**

<u>Days of Leave Per Month</u>	<u>Hours of Leave Per Month</u>	<u>Hour of Leave Bi-weekly</u>	<u>Hourly Rate Per Hour</u>
<u>2</u>	<u>16</u>	<u>7.39</u>	<u>.0923</u>

- c. Sick leave accrued shall be based on the equivalent of years of full-time state service or part-time service on a prorated to full-time equivalency basis and shall be credited at the**

end of each pay period or calendar month in accordance with the following general schedule:

**ACCRUAL RATES OF SICK LEAVE
UNCLASSIFIED FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES**

Months of Leave Eligible Service	Hours Earned Based Upon Eligible Service As Calculated in the Banner System				
	35 or less	36-59	60-119	120-179	180+
Months of Service					
Hours of Leave Earned Per Week	1.85 hours	2.31 hours	2.77 hours	3.23 hours	3.7 hours
Hours of Leave Per (80-hour) Pay Period	3.69 hours	4.61 hours	5.54 hours	6.46 hours	7.39 hours

COMPENSATORY LEAVE

d. — Compensatory leave is leave earned in lieu of paying an eligible unclassified employee for overtime hours worked. Full time faculty with an annual contract of less than 12-month duration, who are employed as adjunct faculty during the summer immediately following the end of their contract, may accrue sick leave prorated, as necessary, during the actual weeks of employment should their respective college choose to adopt such practice. Such faculty shall earn sick leave according to the rates shown in F.I.c. above.

e. — No sick leave shall be credited until the employee has completed the pay period in which s/he is employed. No sick leave is accrued for any overtime hour(s), for any hour(s) of leave without pay, for any hour(s) of on-call status outside regular duty hours, for any hour(s) of travel or other activity outside the employee's regular duty hours, for any hour of a holiday or other non-work day which occurs while on-leave without pay, for any hour while an employee is on sabbatical leave, advanced degree leave, or leave of absence without pay. However, time spent on sabbatical leave and advanced degree leave does count as service toward leave accrual rate change.

f. — Unused sick leave accrued by an employee shall be carried forward to the succeeding years without limitation.

2. — Use of Sick Leave

a. — Sick leave with pay may be taken by an employee with sufficient leave to his credit for the following:

1) — Illness or injury which prevents performance of work duties.

- 2) — Medical, dental or optical consultation or treatment.
- 3) — FMLA approved only for the employee's own illness or injury

————— All employees are expected to notify their supervisor in all instances of absence.

3. — Requirements concerning the use of sick leave include the following:

- a. — A supervisor may place an employee on sick leave when the employee asserts the need to be absent from work because of the employee's illness or injury.
- b. — Sick leave is to be taken in minimum increments of one-half hours. For purposes of FMLA, the leave to be taken shall be identified as Family and Medical Leave on all leave slips.
- c. — Sick leave may not be used to care for a child or family member.
- d. — An employee may choose to use compensatory leave in place of sick leave.
- e. — Sick leave shall not be charged for non-work days and/or non-regular tour of duty hours.
- f. — Employees absent from work for up to 5 consecutive work days may be required to provide a doctor's note; however, any employee absent for more than 5 consecutive work days will be required to submit a release to return to work from a licensed physician or practitioner. The need for written proof of short term illness, including those of 5 days or less, will be determined by the supervisor based on such things as the employee's attendance and performance record.
- g. — It is expected that sick leave will be used only as appropriate. Abuse of this privilege is cause for disciplinary action.
 - 1) — The abuse of sick leave privileges may result in sick leave sanctions and/or disciplinary action regardless of the length of absence. Such sanctions will require employees to present a medical certification for any period of absence. Sick leave sanctions may not be imposed for leave covered by the FMLA. All employees are expected to notify their supervisor when absent. Failure to do so may result in disciplinary action, including termination.
 - 2) — Should an employee fail to call or notify the supervisor, all hours absent will be charged as unauthorized leave without pay, unless it is shown that it was medically impossible or impractical to notify the supervisor.

4. — FMLA Sick Leave

- a. — Employees are required to provide 30 days' notice for FMLA sick leave unless it is medically impossible or impractical to provide such notice.
- b. — Employees may use FMLA sick leave *only* when the FMLA leave is for the employee's own injury or illness, *not* for FMLA leave to care for a family member or military FMLA leave.
- c. — Employees are required to provide physician certification for all such FMLA sick leave to be taken. Such certification shall be provided within 15 calendar days of notice to use of the leave. If information is missing, the employee will be given seven days to clear up the deficiency. If the employee fails to submit and complete a sufficient certification despite the opportunity to clear up the deficiency,

the employer may deny the FMLA leave. Upon request, employees shall provide FMLA medical certification even when taking paid leave along with the unpaid FMLA leave.

d. — For FMLA and workers' compensation sick leave, the System President, and Chancellor/Appointing Authority may require second or third opinions (at the agency's expense) and a fitness for duty report to return to work. The employee may be required to be examined by a health care provider of the employer's designation and at the employer's expense. If the second opinion does not agree with the employee's certification, the employer may require a third opinion. For the third opinion, the employee may be required to be examined by a health care provider mutually approved by the employer and the employee at the employer's expense. In all cases of FMLA sick leave, the third opinion is final and binding. The fitness for duty (return to work) certification shall specifically address whether the employee can perform the essential functions of his or her job. If the employer has reasonable concerns about an employee's ability to safely perform a job, the employer can require an employee to provide a fitness for duty certification before the employee may return to work from an absence while on intermittent FMLA sick leave.

5. — Application Required When Using Sick Leave

a. — An unclassified employee shall apply for use of, or use sick leave when the employee has an illness or injury which prevents performance of work duties or a medical, dental or optical consultation or treatment.

b. — When practical, such application shall be made in advance to the supervisor.

e. — Appointments for medical, dental or optical consultation or treatment shall be arranged to be least disruptive to the operations of the department.

6. — Advance of Leave

a. — No advance of sick leave will be granted. Employees who have exhausted sick leave but who earn and have annual and/or compensatory leave will be required to make use of their annual and/or compensatory leave to continue their leave status or they may request leave without pay upon exhaustion of other paid leave balances. The granting of leave without pay is not automatic, and is at the discretion of the employer. Employees who fail or refuse to request leave without pay shall administratively be placed on unauthorized leave without pay and may be subject to disciplinary action, including termination.

b. — Sick leave cannot be shared or borrowed from the leave balances of other employees.

7. — Transfer or Continuance of Sick Leave Balances

a. — When an employee *changes employment status within the LCTCS (Faculty/Other Academic/Unclassified/Classified), is re-employed by the LCTCS, or is hired from another State Agency to the LCTCS* without a break in service of one or more working days, accrued and unused sick leave credits of the employee will be certified and credited to the leave record; provided that

• — an employee cannot be given more leave credit than he/she could have earned had he/she performed all of the service under the leave regulations of the LCTCS;

~~a. — the employee is eligible to accrue sick leave and termination was not made for cause (disciplinary action);~~

~~b. — The employee must be re-employed in a benefit eligible position as a condition for using credited sick leave.~~

~~c. — When an employee changes their position from one state agency to another, without a break in service of one or more working days, the unused sick leave shall be forwarded to the gaining agency, upon request by the gaining agency, for credit to the employee by that agency according to that agency's leave policies.~~

~~d. — When a former LCTCS employee is rehired into state service following a break of one or more working days, accrued, unused sick leave balances remaining in LCTCS records will be transferred to the hiring agency upon request, provided the duration of the break in state service does not exceed 5 years.~~

~~e. — Public parish school system employment is accepted under this policy as "state service" for determination of years of service in calculation of accrual rate for the earning of leave. Such public parish school system employment does not, however, provide eligibility for transfer of leave balance from the public parish school system to the LCTCS.~~

~~8. — Disbursement of Accrued Sick Leave Upon Separation (non-retirement)~~

~~An unclassified employee shall not receive payment, directly or in kind, for any accrued sick leave remaining at the time of their non-retirement separation from state service.~~

~~9. — Retention Limit for Unused Sick Leave~~

~~Remaining accrued, unused sick leave credits will be maintained in LCTCS records for a period of 5 years from the date of non-retirement separation. These credits will be verified and transferred, upon request, to a new state employer, or re-instated if re-employed with an LCTCS institution, as long as the individual has not been out of state service for more than 5 years. The credits will be cleared from LCTCS records after 5 years from the date of the employee's non-retirement separation from employment.~~

~~10. Payment of Sick Leave Upon Retirement from Active Duty, Entry into Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP) or Death~~

~~a. — Upon death or retirement of an unclassified employee, sick leave accrued to his credit shall be computed and the value thereof shall be paid to the employee or his heirs, provided that the sick leave has been accrued under established leave regulations and a daily attendance record has been maintained for the employee, except that such payment shall not exceed the value of 25 working days computed on the basis of a five-day, 40-hour week (200 hours). Unclassified employees who are members of LASERS, LSERS, TRSL or ORP will receive payment for sick leave credits to which they are entitled (not to exceed 200 hours or 25 days), (LRS 17:425.) TRSL members who enter DROP may elect to be paid either upon entering DROP or at retirement from state service (L.R.S. 17:425.1) Unclassified employees who are members of LASERS may elect to be paid either upon eligibility for retirement, participation in DROP or at retirement from state service (L.R.S. 17:425.2). The payment shall be computed as follows:~~

~~1) — When the employee is paid on an hourly basis, the regular hourly rate that the employee received at the time of termination from state service shall be multiplied by the number of hours of their accrued sick leave, which number is not to exceed two hundred (200) hours; or~~

~~2) — When the employee is paid on other than an hourly basis, the employee's hourly rate shall be determined by converting the salary the employee received at the time of termination from service into a working hourly rate. The converted hourly rate shall be multiplied by the number of hours of their accrued sick leave, which number is not to exceed two hundred (200) hours. The hourly rate for leave payments shall be calculated as follows:~~

~~• — Base fiscal year (12 month) annual salary divided by 2080 (52 weeks x 40 hours);~~

~~• — Base academic year (10 month) annual salary divided by 1600 (10 months x 4 weeks x 40 hours);~~

~~• — Base academic year (9 month) annual salary divided by 1440 (9 months x 4 weeks x 40 hours).~~

~~————— Note: Civil Service General Circular 001155 dated June 16, 1994 states that
————— classified employees are not eligible for payment of unused sick leave.~~

~~b. — Employees who are members of LASERS also have the option to receive a lump sum payment from LASERS for the actuarial value of their unused, unpaid sick leave that would otherwise be converted to service credit. Employees interested in this option should inform human resources well in advance of their projected retirement date. (L.R.S. 11:424). Payment for unused sick leave in excess of sick leave payout or conversion to service credit is made and regulated by the retirement system. All questions should be directed to the retirement system and in no case shall sick leave be used to determine eligibility for retirement.~~

11. Reemployment After Retirement

~~Unused, unpaid sick leave is not re-credited to individuals reemployed after retirement from state service.~~

G. Compensatory Leave for Non-Faculty Unclassified Employees

~~1. — Compensatory leave is leave earned in lieu of paying an eligible unclassified employee for overtime hours worked. Compensatory leave earnings are based upon a determination of the employee's Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) status of exempt or non-exempt. See *Accrual Section for specifics.*~~

Exempt employees are hired to work 40-hour workweeks/80-hour pay periods for all 12 months of a year and under normal circumstances are not compensated for any additional time worked. Although not always required, but in the spirit of providing a benefit to those eligible unclassified employees that work more than the normal 40-hour week compensatory leave is offered.

A. Approval for Compensatory Leave

All compensatory leave for eligible unclassified employees must have written prior approval from the Appointing Authority specifying the reason for the approval.

~~1.~~ The approval document shall be filed in the appropriate campus office.

~~1.~~

~~2.~~ Compensatory leave is not to be used to extend an employee's workday or in lieu of a lunch break.

~~2.~~ The Appointing Authority may provide for exceptions through prior written approvals for circumstances involving special projects or circumstances that require additional work hours beyond the regular 40-hour work week.

~~3.~~

~~4.~~ If there is a work-from-home policy or extenuating circumstances requires an unclassified employee to work from home the employee may earn compensatory leave if given specific written advance approval by the Appointing Authority. The approval document shall be filed in the campus human resource office.

Time worked without prior written authorization shall not be approved for compensatory leave.

B. Eligibility for Compensatory Leave

~~1.~~ Unclassified employees exempt and non-exempt may be eligible to earn compensatory leave:

~~1.a.~~ Non-exempt unclassified employees must have prior written authorization to earn compensatory time.

~~1.b.~~ Exempt unclassified employees must have prior written Appointing Authority approval.

~~1.a.i.~~ Per FLSA, it should be noted that exempt employees are not entitled to earn compensatory leave.

~~1.a.ii.~~ However, an Appointing Authority may allow certain exempt employees to earn compensatory leave with prior written approval for circumstances involving special projects or circumstances that require additional work hours beyond the regular 40-hour work week.

~~2.~~ To prevent confusion regarding eligibility, the Appointing Authority shall document which exempt positions may not be eligible for compensatory leave.

~~2.a.~~ Such documentation should be noted in the position description and kept on file with the human resource office.

~~—~~ Those individuals employed with a status of faculty, intermittent, seasonal, student, or temporary are ineligible to earn compensatory leave and are not paid when the college is officially closed, unless hours are worked.

~~3.~~

C. Accrual of Compensatory Leave

~~1.~~ Compensatory leave earnings are based upon a determination of the employee's Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) status of exempt or non-exempt.

~~1.~~

~~1.a.~~ When a holiday or paid leave is used towards the 40-hour work week, the non-exempt employee shall earn straight time of compensatory leave for hours worked over the 40-hours;

~~1.a.~~

~~1.b.~~ When a non-exempt employee actually works all 40-hours in a workweek, the non-exempt employee shall earn time and one-half hours of compensatory leave for the hours **worked** over 40 in a workweek;

~~2.~~ No more than **240 hours** of unused compensatory leave can be carried forward into any fiscal year for non-exempt employees.

- a. In accordance with the FLSA, non-exempt employees working in a public safety activity, an emergency response activity, or a seasonal activity may accrue no more than **480 hours** of compensatory leave for hours worked.
- 3. Exempt employees shall earn straight-time for hours worked over 40 in a workweek.
- 4. No more than **360 hours** of unused compensatory leave can be carried forward from one fiscal year to the next for exempt employees.
 - a. In accordance with FLSA, exempt employees engaged in law enforcement and health care activities may accrue no more than **540 hours** of compensatory leave for hours worked.
- 5. Compensatory leave shall be earned at a minimum of 15-minute increments.
- 6. Compensatory leave shall be claimed by and credited to the eligible unclassified employee during the pay period the overtime is worked and, upon approval, may be used by the employee at a future date.

D. Accrual of Compensatory Leave and Travel

- 1. When an unclassified employee's work assignment requires travel to/from an assigned work site that is different than their normal work site the unclassified employee is considered to be on official travel.
 - 1.
 - a. During a regular workday or holiday, the unclassified employee may be granted a *maximum* of five (5) hours of compensatory leave for hours worked after 4:30 p.m. (or the official workday in effect).
 - a.
 - b. When the travel is on a weekend, an unclassified employee may be granted a *maximum* of eight (8) hours of compensatory leave per day.
 - 2. The employee's time spent for a typical commute from home to the office should not be included when granting compensatory leave for travel to/from a work assignment destination.
 - 3. For purposes of computing compensatory leave hours, travel will be considered "ceased" upon arrival at the destination (place of lodging/work site) and considered "begun" when the employee leaves the destination.
 - 4. When an employee is on official travel and chooses a different mode of travel than that offered (ex: chooses to drive rather than fly), any additional hours of travel time incurred as a result of the employee's personal decision shall not be considered hours worked and will not be eligible for compensatory leave.
- Time spent in session for a conference/convention is to be reported as working time. Compensatory time will be accrued for travel to/from conferences and conventions only when the travel is mandated by the college.

E. Use of Compensatory Leave

- 1. Eligible employees requesting the use of compensatory leave shall be permitted by their immediate supervisor to use such leave within a reasonable period after making the request, if the use of compensatory leave does not unduly disrupt the operations of the organization.
 - 1.
 - a. ~~An~~ The Appointing Authority may require an eligible unclassified employee to use their accrued compensatory leave at any time, especially if they have reached their maximum accrual.
 - a.
 - b. Compensatory leave is to be taken and will be reduced in minimum increments of 30 minutes.
 - b.
 - e. When annual leave is requested and approved, compensatory leave balances will be exhausted before any reduction in the annual leave in order to minimize the institution's liability. This reduction will be an automatic process by the payroll system.
 - c.
 - d. Compensatory leave *may* be used in place of sick leave.
 - d.

- e. The manner in which compensatory use is administered shall be at the discretion of each Appointing Authority and appropriate documentation shall be maintained.

2. Compensatory leave should not be confused with flexible time. Employees cannot arbitrarily determine their own work schedules.

2.

3. Employees approved for a leave under the FMLA are required to use paid compensatory leave prior to the use of paid annual leave. *Please refer to Policy #6.041, Family and Medical Leave for All Employee for more details.*

CIVIL, EMERGENCY, SPEICAL AND OTHER LEAVE

H. Civil, Emergency, Special and Other Leave:

An employee shall be given time off without loss of pay or loss annual and sick leave for the following purposes:

A. Civil Leave

1. Performing state or federal grand or petit jury duty;
2. Summoned to appear as a witness before a court, grand jury, or other public body or commission on a work-related matter or in an official capacity;
3. Upon request of the employee and approval of the supervisor, time off with pay may be allowed for voting in accordance with the following schedule:

<u>Voting Residence Within the Radius of the Campus</u>	
<u>0 to 30 miles</u>	<u>2 hours of leave</u>
<u>31 to 50 miles</u>	<u>4 hours of leave</u>
<u>61 or more miles</u>	<u>1 day of leave</u>

The supervisor, in accordance with the above schedule, will have the discretion of determining the amount of leave and when the time off will be given during the workday.

+B. Emergency Leave

1. Performing emergency civilian duty in relation to national defense;
2. An employee ordered by the National Guard to active duty due to a local emergency, an act of God, a civil or criminal insurrection, a civil or criminal disobedience, or a similar occurrence of an extraordinary and emergency nature which threatens or affects the peace or property of the people of the state of Louisiana or the United States;*
3. When an employee certified as an American Red Cross Trained Disaster Volunteer participates in Level III designated American Red Cross relief services in Louisiana (may not exceed 15 working days in any calendar year);*

2.C. Special Leave

1. When the Appointing Authority determines that employees are prevented from performing their duties by an act of God;*
2. When the Appointing Authority determines that local conditions make it impracticable for employees to work in the locality;*
3. When the The aAppointing aAuthority determines *may* formally declare early closure at times for reasons that fall outside of an act of God but are deemeds closure is appropriate for business operation purposes; In these instances of early closure those at work at the time of the declared early closure are eligible to receive special leave for the time of the office closure that falls within the employee's regular work hours;*

4. The employee is ordered to report for a pre-induction physical examination incidental to possible entry into the armed forces of the United States;*

3.D. Other Leave

1. Taking a required examination pertinent to the employee's state employment before a state or national licensing board;*

2. An employee that is a current member of the Civil Air Patrol and, incidental to such membership, is ordered to perform duty with troops or participate in field exercises or training except that such leave shall not exceed fifteen (15) working days in any one (1) calendar year and shall not be used for unit meetings or training conducted during such meetings;*

3. At the discretion of the Appointing Authority, a full-time faculty member, who does not earn annual leave, shall be allowed to use up to two (2) days absence during each academic year without loss of pay for personal purposes as may be determined by the full-time faculty member. The employee shall give his immediate supervisor at least twenty-four (24) hours' notice prior to taking the leave. The personal leave shall be charged to and deducted from the employee's accrued sick leave as provided by *Louisiana R.S. 17:3312(b)*. -Written justification for such leave, signed by the Appointing Authority shall be filed with the time record covering the period for which the leave is granted.*

***These leave items do not apply to hourly part-time or non-leaving earning employees. An employee shall be given time off without loss of pay, annual, or sick leave for the purposes listed in this section. The following are recognized by the Board of Supervisors as appropriate reasons:**

1. ~~For performing state or federal grand or petit jury duty;~~
2. ~~When summoned to appear as a witness before a court, grand jury, or other public body or commission on a work-related matter or in an official capacity; employees may request annual leave, compensatory leave or leave without pay if no annual or compensatory leave is available to serve as a witness for personal/non-work related reasons;~~
3. ~~For performing emergency civilian duty in relation to national defense;~~
4. ~~Employees who are unable to vote prior to or after their workday, upon request of the employee and approval of the supervisor, may be allowed time off with pay for voting in accordance with the following schedule:~~

~~Voting Residence Within:~~

~~0-30 mile radius of the campus: 2 hours leave~~

~~31-60 mile radius of the campus: 4 hours leave~~

~~61 or more mile radius of the campus: 1 day leave~~

~~The supervisor, in accordance with the above schedule, will have the discretion of determining the amount of leave and when the time off will be given during the workday. Nothing in this policy prevents the supervisor from inquiring as to the reasons why the employee cannot vote prior to or after the workday.~~

NOTE: Most of the leave items listed below do not apply to hourly (i.e., part time or non-leave earning) employees.

5. ~~Taking a required examination pertinent to the employee's state employment before a state or national licensing board;~~
6. ~~When the appointing authority determines that employees are prevented from performing their duties by an act of God;~~

- ~~7. When the appointing authority shall determine that local conditions or celebrations make it impracticable for employees to work in the locality.~~
- ~~8. The appointing authority may formally declare early closure at times for reasons that fall outside of an act of God but are deemed appropriate for business operation purposes. In these instances of early closure those at work at the time of the declared early closure are eligible to receive special leave for the time of the office closure that falls within the employee's regular work hours.~~
- ~~9. The employee is ordered to report for a pre-induction physical examination incidental to possible entry into the armed forces of the United States;~~
- ~~10. The employee is a member of the National Guard and is ordered to active duty incidental to a local emergency, an act of God, a civil or criminal insurrection, a civil or criminal disobedience, or a similar occurrence of an extraordinary and emergency nature which threatens or affects the peace or property of the people of the state of Louisiana or the United States;~~
- ~~11. The employee is a current member of the Civil Air Patrol and, incidental to such membership, is ordered to perform duty with troops or participate in field exercises or training except that such leave shall not exceed fifteen (15) working days in any one (1) calendar year and shall not be used for unit meetings or training conducted during such meetings;~~
- ~~12. When an employee certified as an American Red Cross Trained Disaster Volunteer participates in Level III designated American Red Cross relief services in Louisiana (may not exceed 15 working days in any calendar year);~~
- ~~13. When attending the funeral or burial rites of immediate family members, to include: a parent, step-parent, child, step-child, brother, step-brother, sister, step-sister, spouse, mother-in-law, father-in-law, grandparent, step-grandparent, or grandchild provided such time off shall not exceed two (2) days on any one occasion. Employees may request annual leave or leave without pay to attend funeral or burial rites of friends or relatives who are not immediate family. Whenever possible, prior notice of the need to take such leave shall be given by the employee to the supervisor;~~
- ~~14. At the discretion of the appointing authority, a full-time faculty member, who does not earn annual leave, shall be allowed to use up to two days absence during each academic year without loss of pay for personal purposes as may be determined by the full-time faculty member. The employee shall give his immediate supervisor at least twenty-four (24) hours' notice prior to taking the leave. The personal leave shall be charged to and deducted from the employee's accrued sick leave as provided by R.S. 17:3312(b). Written justification for such leave, signed by the appointing authority shall be filed with the time record covering the period for which the leave is granted.~~

MILITARY LEAVE. ~~Workers' Compensation and Leave Use:~~

~~When an unclassified employee is absent from work due to disabilities for which he is entitled to Worker's Compensation, he may, at his option, use sick or annual leave or any appropriate combination of sick and annual leave to receive combined leave and workers' compensation payments equal to, and, in an amount not to exceed, the employee's regular salary.~~

J. Military Leave.

The provisions of this section shall apply to members of a Reserve Component of the Armed—— Forces of the United States who are called to duty for military purposes, and to members of National Guard Units which are called to active duty as a result of a non-local or non-state emergency.

1.A. Military Leave With Pay:

1. Provided they give advance notice, employees shall be entitled to military leave with pay.
2. No advance notice is required when such notice is either precluded by military necessity, or otherwise impossible or unreasonable.
3. Maximum military leave with pay for military purposes is 15 working days per calendar year.
- ~~3.4. Employees who are on Leave without Pay shall receive, each calendar year, the full 15-days of Military Leave with Pay.~~

2.B. Use of Annual and Compensatory Leave for Military Purposes:

1. Employees who give advance notice of military obligations and apply for annual or compensatory leave for military obligations ~~and apply for annual or compensatory leave for military purposes,~~ shall be granted such leave.
- ~~2.~~ No advance notice is required when such notice is either precluded by military necessity, or otherwise impossible or unreasonable.

3. Use of Leave Without Pay for Military Purposes:

- C.
1. Employees who have either, exhausted annual leave and compensatory leave, or choose not to use their paid leave for military purposes, shall be placed on leave without pay.
 2. This period of leave without pay for military purposes shall not exceed six (6) years. After six (6) years, ~~they~~he/she shall be separated from employment with the LCTCS. ~~This section does not extend the term of temporary appointments which were made for less than six years; If~~ if the original term of the appointment was less than six (6) years, LCTCS may end the appointment as originally scheduled and the employee may be separated.

A.D. Rights Upon Return to Work:

- Employees returning to their unclassified positions under the provisions of this section, which governs time frame requirements for restoration to state employment, shall return with such seniority, status, pay, and annual and sick leave accrual rates as they would have had if they had not been absent for military training or military active duty.

4.E. Pay Differential for Military Leave

1. The provisions of this section:
 - a. ~~A~~Apply to employees who are called to active duty, and who are on Leave Without Pay by choice or because all annual and/or compensatory leave has been exhausted.
 - b. ~~The provisions of this subsection (e) shall a~~Apply retroactively to September 11, 2001.
 - a. ~~The Provisions of this subsection (e) s~~Shall NOT apply to employees on “inactive duty for training” (weekend drills).
 - c.
2. ~~When Military Leave with Pay as provided in this Military Leave section of the policy has been exhausted, a~~An employee whose military base pay is less than ~~their~~his state base pay shall be paid the difference between ~~their~~his military base pay and ~~his~~their regular state base pay provided:
 - a. Military Leave with Pay (Section O.1 above) has been exhausted;
 - b. in his regular position.—Such payment shall be made on the same frequency and manner as the employee’s regular state pay, unless other voluntary arrangements are made;:-

- c. ~~Employees receiving the pay differential shall provide the agency officials any documentation appropriate to ensure the payment amount is calculated correctly;~~
- d. ~~Employees who chooses to use the pay differential option shall have their leave balance re-credited with a leave amount equal to the value of the pay differential the employee would have received had this rule been in effect on September 11, 2001, if the paid leave has been used during any portion of service from September 11, 2001, through the date of adoption of this policy;~~
- e. ~~Employees who choose to use their annual leave during their period of military absence shall not be eligible for receipt of the pay differential, unless the leave was used between September 11, 2001, and the date of the adoption of this Military Leave subsection, in which case subparagraph (4) shall apply. policy section;~~
- a. ~~The pay differential shall be suspended until the 15-day Military Leave with Pay period is exhausted and the employee returns to Leave Without Pay status.~~
- f.

5.F. Leave Accruals During Military Leave

- 1. ~~Employees shall continue to accrue sick and annual leave for the entire period of service, beginning the date of the service.~~
- 2. ~~Leave shall be accrued on the same basis as though the employee had not been activated.~~
- 3. ~~Leave earned shall be credited to the employee upon their/his return from active duty.~~
- b. ~~**Rescinding Resignation** Employees who are on Leave without Pay shall receive, each calendar year, the full 15 days of Military Leave with Pay provided in J (a) 3. The pay differential allowed in J (e) 1 shall be suspended until the 15-day Military Leave with Pay period is exhausted and the employee returns to Leave Without Pay status.~~
- e. ~~If paid leave has been used during any portion of service from September 11, 2001, through the date of adoption of this section, an employee who chooses to use the pay differential option shall have his leave balance re-credited with a leave amount equal to the value of the pay differential the employee would have received had this rule been in effect on September 11, 2001.~~

G.

- 1. An employee, who was called to active duty for military purposes and who resigned from state service, may:
 - a. ~~, at his rRequest that their resignation be rescinded and become eligible for the above benefits;~~
 - a.b. ~~Such request must be made and within 90 days of their his release from active duty, have his resignation rescinded and become eligible for the benefits of subsection J(e).~~

B. EDUCATIONAL LEAVE K. Educational Leave:

An employee who has been employed at least one year in a full-time permanent position may:

- 1. ~~rRequest and may be granted maximum time off of three (3) clock hours per week per traditional academic semester or its equivalency for non-traditional semesters or activities such as terminal degree projects;~~
- 2. ~~For approved attendance of a job-related course of study;~~
- 3. ~~Such a request may be granted or denied by the Appointing Authority;~~
- 4. ~~, or its equivalency for non-traditional semesters, as determined by the appointing authority, Such request if granted shall be without loss of pay or loss of ; annual and/or leave, or compensatory leave;~~
- 5. ~~for approved attendance of a job-related course of study. Such leave shall not be granted more than once for the same course of study;~~

6. Prior to granting such leave the supervisor shall certify that the employee has received a “satisfactory” or above rating on their-his/her performance evaluation within the last twelve months.
7. Part time employees are not eligible for educational leave.

ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE L. Administrative Leave:

An Appointing aAuthority may place an employee on administrative leave with or without pay for a specific or indefinite period of time when in the appointing aAuthority’s opinion, such action would be in the best interest of the college or the system.

The System President must be notified when such action is taken.

SABBATICAL LEAVE M. Sabbatical Leave:

Sabbatical leave is leave with pay for the purpose of professional or cultural improvement, ~~or for the purpose of~~ or for the study or research in accordance with the conditions in this policy. ~~specified below:~~

Eligibility and Approval for Sabbatical Leave

- A.
 1. ~~Sabbatical leave applies o~~Only to full-time LCTCS “faculty” members are eligible;
 2. ~~“Faculty” is defined in LSA-R.S. 17:3304. See reference section below for details.~~
 - i. ~~(see References) as follows: “Members of the instructional staff of each college and university having the rank of instructor or higher and persons engaged in instructional, library, artistic, and investigative positions of equal dignity shall constitute the faculty of each college. The head of each college and its academic officers shall be members of the faculty.”~~Counselors are considered “faculty” for the purpose of the LCTCS sabbatical leave provisions.
 - i. ~~_____~~
 3. May be granted following any six (6) or more consecutive fiscal years of active service in the institution where such individual is employed;
 4. An individual may not accumulate time in an attempt to qualify for more than one consecutive year of sabbatical leave;
 5. Sabbatical leave shall be granted only with prior Board approval.

B. Length of Sabbatical Leave and Return to Regular Duties

1. ~~Sabbatical leave may be granted for two semesters (52 weeks for 12-month employees). May be granted for two semesters (52 weeks for 12-month employees);~~
2. May be granted for one semester (26 weeks for 12-month employees) following three or more consecutive years of such service by an individual;
1. ~~It may be granted following any six or more consecutive fiscal years of active service in the institution where such individual is employed. An individual may not accumulate time in an attempt to qualify for more than one consecutive year of sabbatical leave. Such leave may be granted for one semester (26 weeks for 12-month employees) following three or more consecutive years of such service by an individual, provided that absence due to sick leave shall not be deemed to interrupt the active service provided for herein. A sabbatical leave taken during a summer session shall be considered a semester for such leave purposes;~~
3. ~~_____~~
4. In accepting a sabbatical leave with pay, the faculty member shall be understood to assume a legal obligation as listed in Acts 1991 and 858 (R.S. 17:3328 see N.10 References) to return to the

institution for at least one year of further service at the close of the sabbatical leave period. Acts 1991 and 858 (R.S. 17:3328)

5. –A copy of this rule shall be included in the college’s faculty handbook and shall be made known to each applicant for such leave.

C. Compensation During Sabbatical Leave

1. The compensation from the LCTCS for the period of approved sabbatical Sabbatical leave shall be at the rate of not more than ~~seventy-five~~75 percent (75%) of the salary the individual would receive during the current fiscal year; for the period of time such leave is applied for and granted
2. Compensation payable to persons on sabbatical leave shall be paid at the time at which salaries of the other members of the faculty are paid and in the same manner;
3. Should an employee on sabbatical leave In these cases where the faculty member or administrator received outside compensation, such payment is to be approved in writing and in advance by the Chancellor;
4. ~~as supportive of the purposes of the leave.~~–If outside compensation plus paid leave would exceed the employee’s regular salary, the leave pay will be reduced so that the so that the LCTCS will pay no leave if the outside compensation shall equals or not exceeds the employee’s regular -pay.
5. Nothing shall prevent the faculty member from being remunerated by outside agencies at higher rates than his/her regular pay.
6. Individuals accepting sabbatical leave (with pay) are cautioned about prohibitions against dual appointment or dual employment as described in LSA-R.S. 42:64.

D. Retirement Contribution During Sabbatical Leave

6. The ~~Employers and employees~~ portion of retirement contributions shall contribute to the retirement system on the basis of full annual salary rate. Compensation payable to persons on sabbatical leave shall be paid at the time at which salaries of the other members of the faculty are paid and in the same manner.

E. Review of the Sabbatical Leave

7. In those cases where the faculty member or administrator received outside compensation, such payment is to be approved in writing and in advance by the Chancellor as supportive of the purposes of the leave. If outside compensation plus paid leave would exceed the regular salary, the leave pay will be reduced so that the LCTCS will pay no leave if the outside compensation equals or exceeds the regular pay. Nothing shall prevent the faculty member from being remunerated by outside agencies at higher rates than his/her regular pay.

8. After each sabbatical leave period is completed, evidence as determined by the institution shall be submitted to the appropriate supervisor to indicate that the purpose for which the leave was granted has been achieved.

F. Departmental Requirement

9. At no time during any semester of an academic year shall the number of persons on leave with pay (except sick leave) exceed 5 percent of the total faculty. Prevailing financial conditions within the State or college normally play a role in decisions to grant sabbatical leave.

G. References

10. In accepting a sabbatical leave with pay, the faculty member shall be understood to assume a legal obligation as listed in Acts 1991 and 858 (R.S. 17:3328 – see N.10 – References) to return to the institution for at least one year of further service at the close of the sabbatical leave period. A copy of this rule shall be included in the college’s faculty handbook and shall be made known to each applicant for such leave.

~~11. Individuals accepting sabbatical leave (with pay) are cautioned about prohibitions against dual appointment or dual employment as described in LSA-R.S. 42:64.~~

~~12. Sabbatical leave shall be granted only with prior Board approval.~~

~~13. Reference~~

~~a. LSA-R.S. 17:3304. - Faculty;~~

- ~~1. (A) Members of the instructional staff of each college having rank of instructor or higher and persons engaged in library, artistic, research and investigative positions of equal dignity, shall constitute the faculty of each college and university.~~
- ~~1. The head of each college and its academic officers shall be members of the faculty.~~
- ~~2.~~
- ~~2. (B) The designation of faculty status by the Section shall not affect or change any provision of law affecting or relating to the retirement of any person, and the retirement of all faculty personnel shall be governed by applicable retirement or the applicable laws. (Added by Acts 1975, No. 313 ^ 2, effective July 17, 1975.)~~

~~LSA-R.S. 17:3328 - Sabbatical Leave~~

- ~~1. Persons granted sabbatical leave; return to service.~~
- ~~2. -Each person granted sabbatical leave shall sign an agreement or contract with histheir employing institution stipulating that as a condition of histheir sabbatical leave and in order to be eligible for compensation during such leave, they will return to histheir employing institution for at least one year of further service after leave is completed. (Added by Act 1991, No. 858)~~

ADVANCED DEGREE LEAVE N. Advanced Degree Leave

Advanced Degree Leave ~~applies only to~~ is for the purpose of obtaining an advanced degree.

A. Eligibility

- ~~1. Full time non-faculty employees of the LCTCS;~~
 - ~~a. Faculty is defined in the sabbatical leave section of this policy.~~
- ~~2. Non-faculty who have completed three consecutive years of service in the institution where employed;~~
- ~~3. (faculty is defined in the section of this policy on sabbatical leave, all others equal non-faculty for purposes of advanced degree leave), who have completed three consecutive years of service in the institution where employed. Such employees may petition for advanced degree leave.~~

B. Petition Requirements

- ~~1. Shall set forth the course of study to be pursued;~~
- ~~2. The accredited institution to be attended;~~
- ~~3. An account of the employee's prospect for securing an advanced degree;~~
- ~~4. How the course of study is job-related;~~
- ~~5. How the course of study may enhance the ability to perform current/future positions;~~
- ~~6. Other information as may be required by the institution.~~

C. Petition Review and Approvals

- ~~1. Petitions for advanced degree leave shall be granted only after the President or Chancellor, and the appropriate administrative officer have determined that the interests of the LCTCS will best be served by granting such leave.~~

2. Requests require recommendation of the President and/or Chancellor and prior Board of Supervisors' approval.

D. Length of Advanced Degree Leave and Return to Regular Duties

1. For not more than one year of study to pursue an advanced degree.

2. Employees shall be required to return to their job duties for at least one year before accepting employment elsewhere or will be required to repay the amount of salary paid during the course of the Advanced Degree Leave.

E. Compensation During Advanced Degree Leave

A. ~~of absence with partial pay for not more than one year of study to pursue an advanced degree.~~

1. The amount of pay allowed on leave to obtain an advanced degree shall be determined in each individual case by the ~~a~~Appointing ~~a~~Authority, based upon available budget dollars.

2. ~~but~~ In no event shall the pay exceed seventy-five percent (75%) of the ~~employee's~~ regular salaryy which would acerue to the petitioner during the period of leave.

3. Individuals accepting advanced degree leave (with pay) are cautioned about prohibitions against dual appointment or dual employment as described in LSA-R.S. 42:64

F. Reporting Requirements of Employee

1. Recipients of advanced degree leave are required to furnish proof of enrollment in course of study prior to the leave being granted.

4.2. ~~Proof of successful completion of courses pursued is required to be submitted to the President or Chancellor at the end of each semester.~~

~~B. The petition shall set forth the course of study to be pursued, the accredited institution to be attended, an account of the petitioner's prospect for securing an advanced degree, how the course of study is job related and/or will enhance the ability to perform current/future positions, and such other information as may be required by the institution.~~

~~C. Advance degree leave requests require recommendation of the President and/or Chancellor and require prior Board approval.~~

~~D. Petitions for advanced degree leave shall be granted only after the President or Chancellor, and the appropriate administrative officer have determined that the interests of the LCTCS will best be served by granting such leave.~~

~~E.G. Recipients of advanced degree leave are required to furnish proof of enrollment in course of study prior to the leave being granted. Proof of successful completion of courses pursued is required to be submitted to the President or Chancellor at the end of each semester.~~ **Termination of Advanced Leave.**

1. The President or Chancellor may terminate the advanced degree leave;

2. The employee may, on his own initiative or at the request to terminate the advanced degree leave;

3. Reasons for termination of advanced degree leave:

a. ~~of an employee, may terminate advanced degree leave due to~~ Unsuccessful completion of courses pursued; or

a. ~~or w~~ When such action is in the best interest of the institution.

b.

~~F. Employees shall be required to return to their job duties for at least one year before accepting employment elsewhere or will be required to repay the amount of salary paid during the course of the Advanced Degree Leave.~~

~~G. LEAVE WITHOUT PAY~~ Individuals accepting advanced degree leave (with pay) are cautioned about prohibitions against dual appointment or dual employment as described in LSA R.S. 42:64.

~~C. O. Leave Without Pay:~~

Leave without pay shall be:

- ~~1. Applied for in advance, when possible, by the employee;~~
- ~~2. and may be taken only when other appropriate paid leave has been exhausted;~~
- ~~3. , and leave without pay has been approved by the supervisor.~~

The granting of leave without pay is not automatic and is at the discretion of the employer.

Employees who fail or refuse to request leave without pay shall administratively be placed on unauthorized leave without pay and may be subject to disciplinary action, including termination.

~~—All employees are expected to notify their supervisor when absent. Failure to do so may result in disciplinary action, including termination. Refer to provisions of FMLA and Military Leave.~~

~~D. LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY. Leave of Absence Without Pay~~

~~An appointing authority may recommend to the Board of Supervisors granting of a leave of absence without pay to an unclassified employee for a period not to exceed one (1) year~~

- ~~1. An Appointing Authority may recommend to the Board of Supervisors the granting of a leave of absence without pay for an unclassified employee for a period not to exceed one (1) year;~~
- ~~2. , provided that Such leave shall not prolong the employee's appointment period of the employee's appointment or employment in state service.~~
- ~~3. Such wWritten request shall be considered only when all of the following conditions are met:
 - a. The employee has exhausted all credited compensatory, annual and/or sick leave;
 - b. The employee, has, in a made a written timely manner, made a request in writing to the Appointing aAuthority which includes for leave of absence without pay, listing all substantive reasons for the request; and
 - c. A division head has concurred with in the request indicating that:
 - ~~i. 1) The absence of the employee will not impede the current objectives of the respective section, and~~
 - ~~ii. 2) The leave of absence does not conflict with the best interests of the agency institution.~~~~
- ~~4. The aAppointing aAuthority, on his own initiative or at the request of an employee, may terminate a period of authorized leave without pay extended to the employee, provided that such termination is in the best interest of the agency, and written notification is furnished to the employee.~~
- ~~5. If an unclassified employee fails to report for, or refuses to be restored to, duty in pay status on the first working day following the expiration of an approved leave of absence without pay, or at an earlier date upon reasonable and proper notice from the aAppointing aAuthority or the designee, then the employee shall be considered as having deserted their position of appointment or employment.~~
- ~~6. Leave of absence without pay does not count as credited service for leave accrual or retirement purposes.~~
- ~~7. Service before and after leave without pay will be combined to determine leave accrual rates and total service.~~
- ~~8. Sick and annual leave are not accrued while an employee is on leave without pay. Leave without pay shall be reported as such on a leave slip.~~

HOLIDAY AND OFFICE CLOSURES Q. Holidays/Office Closure

1. Holidays shall be observed as provided by LCTCS Policy 6.028 Holidays for All Employees.
2. An unclassified employee in a compensatory leave earning position or in a part-time status may, at the discretion of their ~~a~~Appointing ~~a~~Authority, receive compensatory leave or additional compensation, as applicable, when required by the employer to work on an observed holiday.
3. When an unclassified employee is on leave without pay during the period immediately preceding and following an observed holiday, that employee shall not receive compensation for that holiday unless the holiday is worked by the employee.
4. ~~An employee does not receive holiday payment for a holiday which intervenes while the employee is in a leave without pay status.~~

E. LEAVE HELD IN ABEYANCE FOR ONGOING/ACTIVE EMPLOYEES R. Leave Held in Abeyance for Ongoing/Active Employees

1. ~~A credited balance of unused annual, compensatory, and/or sick leave shall be held in abeyance for an ongoing active employee who becomes ineligible to earn and/or use the particular type of leave pursuant to the terms of this policy.~~
2. ~~The credited balance(s) shall be available to the employee when he/she again becomes eligible to accrue and/or use said leave, or when he/she separates from state service and/or becomes eligible for leave payout based on the appropriate retirement plan.~~
~~In the event of separation from state employment, abeyance leave eligible for severance leave payment will be paid at the hourly rate of the last position held prior to separation from state employment.~~

3. ~~A credited balance of unused annual, compensatory, and/or sick leave shall be held in abeyance for an ongoing active employee who becomes ineligible to earn and/or use the particular type of leave pursuant to the terms of this policy.~~

~~The credited balance(s) shall be available to the employee when he/she again becomes eligible to accrue and/or use said leave, or when he/she separates from state service and/or becomes eligible for leave payout based on the appropriate retirement plan. In the event of separation from state employment, abeyance leave eligible for severance leave payment will be paid at the hourly rate of the last position held prior to separation from state employment.~~